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CHAIR BAlSA: .. , (gavel). .. Good morning, and I'd like to call the meeting of the Planning
Committee of the Maui County Council to order. Today is October 16th, and it's 9: lOin
the morning, and I'm the Committee Chair, Councilmember Gladys Baisa from
Upcountry, Maui. We have a quorum present this morning, and so we're ready to go.
I'd like to request before we begin that anyone in the audience who has any kind of a cell
phone or other noisemaker if you could please put it on silent mode. We would
appreciate that so that we won't be interrupted during our meeting. And I'd like to make
introductions this morning of our Committee Members that are present. We have our
Council Chair Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning. We have Bill Kauakea Medeiros, our Member from East
Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning, Bill. And Michael Molina, our Member from Paia, Haiku, and
Makawao.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Madam Chair.

JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: We also have with us our Staff. We have our, Michael Hopper, our Deputy
Corporation Counsel. And with us today we're very honored to have our Managing
Director for the County of Maui, Sheri Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Good morning.
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CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning, Sheri. And our Committee Staff, we have David Raatz. David
Raatz is our Legislative Attorney, and with him we have Kirstin Hamman, who is another
Legislative Attorney, and our Secretary, Clarita Balala. Also with us today we have Bill
Medeiros, who is our GIS Manager for the County. Yes, how about that, two Bill's
today. He's back there. And we have some other people that I thought would be here are
not here, and I think we have people here that are not on my list. So we'll get to you as
we go along. We have Milton Arakawa, our Deputy [sic] of Public Works. Good
morning, Milton. We have Jeff Eng from Water. Is Jeff here? Not, okay. Cheryl
Okuma, our Director of Environmental Management, good morning. And we have
Wayne Boteilho from our, Deputy Director from Transportation. Am I missing anybody
else? No, I think we got everybody. Thank you for being here, Staff. We really
appreciate having you with us today.
This morning we will be accepting public testimony on the items on our agenda, and we
have two of them, and we'll be starting in a few moments. If you're wishing to testify,
please sign up at the secretary's desk up here with Clarita. And the testimony, of course,
will be limited to three minutes. You are requested, if testifying, to state your name for
the record and if you're representing a group, we'd like to know that also.
Today we have two items on our agenda, PC-19, relating to the County's Geographic
Information System, which we affectionately refer to as GIS, and PC-23, relating to a
possible Maui Island infrastructure study.
ITEM NO. 19

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS)

(C.c. No. 07-200)

CHAIR BAlSA: On the first item, PC-19, relating to the County's GIS, GIS is evolving
technology designed to provide decision-makers with data necessary to facilitate
successful short-term and long-term planning. The County GIS office is part of the
Department of Management, and I am pleased that the Managing Director and the GIS
~

~~

~c~

right.

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much. I may have to leave early, so let me give out ... David?
Thank you very much. I didn't realize the clock started running when I handed this out.
My name is Dick Mayer, and I'm a member of the GP AC, I'm the Vice-Chair, but I'm
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not speaking on behalf of that group today although I'll be speaking about issues which
that group will be taking up.
I'd like to speak first briefly about the GIS. I've talked to some people, and they, they
seem to say that the County is not entirely integrated in its GIS and perhaps a question
that should come from you to the Members, the presenters today and to the other
departments is does the GIS system that the Managing Director's office runs, that the
Water Department, that the Planning Department, each of them, are they all compatible
with each other? Can they speak with each other? Can they transfer data? If they can't,
then there may be some long-term problems in the, in the type of system that we have.
That's all I want to say about GIS.
With regard to infrastructure, I spoke to you already about a year and a half ago when I
was appointed to the GP AC regarding the need to get good information on infrastructure
costs. And I presented to the Council at that time a matrix which I thought would be very
helpful to you in making your budget presentations, in making your, doing your analysis
of where the County should be going and looking at projects, whether it be the big ones
like Kapalua Mauka, Wailea 670, Makena, or many of the smaller ones which
cumulatively may be of the same dimension.
And so what I'm asking is that you request from the County's departments a sort of a
summary list that would allow you to put together a matrix similar to the one I've given
out right now to you. And let me ask, call your attention to that list. On the left side are
a number of infrastructure categories. Some of them are State, some of them are County,
and some of them may be even private. Education, health, obviously medical type things
are State for the most part then, and harbors, and the airports are all State, but there, there
are many, many that are County; wastewater, water, police, fire, et cetera. And each of
them will have projects that they wish to propose in various districts of the County.

at a
we're given the plan, we won't be given it for another three weeks, but when we're
finally given the island-wide plan that there will be something similar to this included in
it. We haven't seen it yet, and I'm not sure what's going to be in there. And obviously
it's going to change. If we decide that there should be more development in West Maui,
or South Maui, or Upcountry, or wherever that's going to mean, mean there will be more
infrastructure needed and then, and the items will change.
IVV'l"HJll",
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But at least it allows us to see what all the projects are. It also allows us to see whether
the County can actually afford going ahead with development in certain areas. You're
right now wrestling with water issues, but the same could be said for a whole bunch of
issues. Just this past week at the GPAC we were given a presentation by the Police
Department, and they gave us about six or seven projects, out over the next 25 years, that
total somewhere around $300 million. Now I had sort of assumed that all we needed is a
big police station and a couple of small ones, and now they're saying they need, would
like to have a police station in West Maui, South Maui, in each of the areas. The same
thing could be said perhaps of fire stations, et cetera.
So you start accumulating all of these infrastructure needs. We may realize that we can't
afford it, or they should really, that we really should do some planning in different ways,
or should allow a project to go forth and require the developer to pay for it, or whatever it
might be. Unless we have some tool like this one that I'm giving you here I don't think
we can make those good decisions. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Mayer. Any questions for the testifier? Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Dick, I was able to look at one of the copies of the handout that
you had, and one of the things that I see is it has a similarity to how the STIP, the State
Transportation Improvement Program, is laid out. But one of the things that I, I'm
wondering, and because it's not broken out here, when we look at the cost for a lot of the
items here, because we have, like, for transportation, for example, and some of our,
maybe not sewer so much as it used to be, but where we're eligible for Federal money,
one of the things that the STIP does is it breaks it out County, State, and then Federal
funding. Do you think that that would also be helpful if there is any money or where we
would intend to get the money from for the funding of such infrastructure, like State
revolving loan fund or?

out over
new wastewater treatment
is
to
area or new water
plant. So what
saying is this should be like a cover concept, and then behind it
be two or three other sheets, perhaps by a two-year period or a four-year period, however
you want to do. It could be by department, it could be source of funding, State, Federal,
County, or in some case private if a developer were required to do it.
So it's just that right now I think we're looking at, it's like looking at a forest by looking
at it one tree at a time, and we don't see that there's a real forest there. And what I'm
saying is there is a forest of projects out there, and it may be way beyond our budget to
5-
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build in certain areas. For example, we may find out that to build in a certain area might
cost us a billion dollars in West Maui, let's just say to build the highway, the hospital, all
the facilities that we need out there. We may say, hey, wait a minute it will be much
cheaper for us if we're going to put another 10,000 people in Maui to do it in South Maui,
or Central Maui, or whatever, because the County cannot afford that highway, or that
hospital, or that whatever it might be.
So that's really what I'm saying is this will allow you to make I think the right decisions.
One thing that's not included in this list, but I think should also be there is deferred
maintenance, because there, in each of these areas here we have not built waterlines or
repaired them, or roads we have not repaired them. So there's a lot of projects. Not only
do we have to build new things, we have to go back and make sure that the things we
already have are maintained at a proper level.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and that brings up when I'm looking at the list here, most
of it has to do with what I consider to be capital improvements, things that we would
ordinarily deem, you know, our core infrastructure. But one of the things that we
struggle with is the operational aspects of it.
MR. MAYER: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And because some of these things are totally out of the County's
control such as education. I mean we can beg, we can try and accelerate through
private/public partnerships some of these I guess, you know, schools or whether it's a
library, even hospital. But because it's not really within our control, how do you see us
trying to struggle with that? And also, because these are just the initial going-in costs for
what the construction of the component would be, how do you see the operating cost
being integrated within this? Because one of the things that's important to me as a
Legislator is looking at,
building it is one thing, but maintaining it and paying

MR.

--so I gave only the, the capital costs. But you're 100 percent right, and it even
can go so far as to, to help you make a decision because there may be two ways to do a
particular project. You may do it, and I'll just give a simple example. You mentioned
operating costs. Electricity is a major cost and building a new water filtration plant, for
example, you might be able to do it cheaper in one place or more expensive in another
place, but one may have a higher operating cost, because the electricity that is needed to
pump the water at one and not the other.
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So if you just look at the capital costs, you may be deceived. If you had looked at the
operating costs, you might find the other one is actually a more inexpensive project to
build. And, yeah, that's, that's the sort of thing once you, if you, at least you need the big
picture, and then you start breaking it down by Federal funding, State funding, the time
periods, the location of these projects and whatever. But I think right now one of the
things that's happening is we're not making those good decisions because we don't have
the big picture at all. At least start with this, and then get the subparts that you need.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and my final question is because we're looking at
infrastructure, and I see the human component as, you know, our personnel as part of our
human infrastructure as well, we're already maxed out on the, I guess, employment,
we're close to 100 percent employment. So do you think that when we're looking at
perhaps a suggestion to do requests for a proposal or including the infrastructure study
that we look at all those components, do a cost benefit analysis, or whoever is going to do
this infrastructure study look at all components including the operating and human
infrastructure?
MR. MAYER: Obviously, if, if you can do that well, but I mean it's, you're, you're, you got so
many different decisions you have to make we cannot look at all the costs. It would be
ideal to have those operating costs out in each project. Let's say you build a new police
station or a new fire station as opposed to, let's say, using the existing one, you know,
you figure out what, what is it going to cost incrementally to put that new station to
capital costs, and now you're going to have to have two managers of those buildings, two
maintenance crews and whatever. Can we afford that extra police station, fire station,
County substation, you know, service center or whatever it might be? And you're going
to have to look at those human costs, because very often, it's more economical to have
one big one than to have five smaller ones because you, you have ... on the other hand it
may be a better service
community and that's
you're going to have to come
as
or

MA YER: Good morning, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony and sharing your ideas. You
did mention that you had suggested something like this in the past. Do you know why it
may not have been incorporated into a matrix like this?
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MR. MAYER: I don't think it was handed to anybody as their responsibility to do it, and I think,
you know, this is something that would really have to be something where the Council,
and maybe the Council Chair, and the Mayor say, hey, we, we all need this information,
in a way that we can make good decisions and maybe in the budget process somewhere
along the line somebody has to say this is so, so-and-so's responsibility. I think some of
this will certainly come up in the Maui Island GP AC, the Maui Island Plan that we will.
on the GP AC will be getting soon, but I don't know the format. I haven't seen it.
And I'm hoping that if it isn't available to us in a, in a master sheet sort oflike this, that
we eventually can get something like that, so that when we eventually pass it on to the
Planning Commission and to you, you will be able to see what is the cost of this plan, and
are there alternatives that there, version A, version B, which is the better one we really
want to go with so you can make those right decisions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I know in, in my research with the Planning Department
there are some reports already available such as public facilities report, wastewater
report, solid waste report, infrastructure report. I, I think your idea of trying to
incorporate all of this into one comprehensive report would be helpful in planning and in
budget processes.
MR. MAYER: Right. That's, that's my thoughts. Having read some of those documents in the
earlier drafts I saw those types of reports, and you know, they talk about what the Police
Department might need or the Fire Department, and occasionally you may even see what
the DOE is going to need, but, but they don't put it together. And to see, you know, once
we add up all those numbers, what's that big number going to be that each year that we
will have to spend out of County money and State money, or what we'll have to request
from the Federal Government? The Federal Government is coming and telling us that
we'll have less money available for highways rather than more. So does that mean that
the
to pick up that
or
State is going to
to pay up

: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any other questions from the Members for the testifier?
thank you very much for being here.
MR. MAYER: Thank you, Madam Chair.

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
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CHAIR BAlSA: Are there any other testifiers? If not, I see nobody rushing forward here. I'm
going to leave public testimony open, and we'll ask again before our next item.
But before we move on this morning, the Chair would like to take a point of personal
privilege. I'd like to introduce a person who is here as my guest today. Her name is
Kalani Schmidt, and she's with Maui Land and Pine. And some of us will know her
because she's the daughter of the famous Theo Morrison of Lahaina. And she is one of
the members of the charter class of the Ka Ipu Kukui Program which we have been
working with at MCC. They are a class of future leaders for Maui. And Clyde
Sakamoto, the Provost, and his staff at the college, and a group of very dedicated
community leaders have put together this program to try to expose our future leaders to
Maui, and the skills and information they need. And Kalani is one of the first group, and
she's spending the day here with me today kind of doing career shadowing to figure out
what it is we do here as Council Members. So, Kalani, would you please stand up so
everybody can see you. We welcome you and thank you for coming.
And now I would like to take a brief recess while we get ready for our GIS presentation.
So we will be in recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:28 a.m.
9:30 a.m.

CHAIR BAlSA: ... (gavel) . .. The meeting will come back to order. I'd like to introduce Sheri
Morrison, our Managing Director for the County of Maui. And she will be making the
introduction of the person who will be doing our presentation this morning. Sheri.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Madam Chair. It's just my pleasure to be here this morning with
Geographic Information Systems Division of the Department
to

see
to
out a
our
We're going to talk a little bit about who we are as a Division, but we're also going to
talk about what is GIS, and we're going to go back at least 100 years to take a look at
that, and then go through a bit of the history of GIS in Maui County, and where we're at
today, and what we expect to be doing in the future.
The GIS Division is, as we mentioned, part of the Department of Management. We come
under the Mayor and the Managing Director. Our Department head is the Managing
Director, and we're one of the Divisions in the Department of Management, and we are,
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we have our own budget. Weare a separate program in the budget. As far as who we are
this is a list of our staff. Right now we have six positions, two which are brand new in
the current budget, and they're under recruitment, and we have four existing staff, that's
me, obviously, and then Walle, Andrew, and Carol. We're the lead GIS agency for the
County. We provide technical support and GIS products to over a dozen County
agencies, other Government agencies, and the public. So we kind of do the overall
County stuff. We do a lot of different departments.
And now we can go into the basics. What is GIS and what does it mean to the average
person? GIS, this is the, the, all the five dollar words, a system which allows
visualization analysis of information based on geographic locations and spatial
relationships. The most important words here are visualization and analysis. For those of
you who have done anything with GIS or seen it, it's being able to see it and actually run
analysis based on locations and spatial relationships. And that's what we mean by
relationships, geographic relationships, and spatial analysis. The location; where is it?
Proximity; what is it close to? Direction, density, area, elevation, classification, and view
shed. So view shed analysis; can you see it? Can you see over it? And so GIS's power
comes in doing these kinds of analysis.
Now let's go back at least 100 years, about 150 years. What is GIS? Okay. GIS, again,
it's analysis based on geographic relationships. The classic example prior to anything in
computers was the Broad Street Pump and the outbreak of cholera in London in 1854.
It's an example of proximity analysis of information collected from multiple sources. So
in 1854, there's a serious outbreak of cholera in the area of Soho in London. Dr. John
Snow felt that cholera was waterborne disease. It was a waterborne disease and the
prevailing thought at the time was that it was airborne. It was an airborne pathogen that
people inhaled it through the air.

So what does it mean to us? Well, you can actually go to London in Soho,
they
actually have a replica of the pump, they actually have a pump named the John Snow at,
it's now called Broderick Street and not Broad Street. And there is a John Snow Society
that meets, that actually, they're epidemiologists, and they're actually into this, you
know, the whole health issues and the use of GIS to actually resolve that.
Okay. What does this mean to us closer to home? In 1999, there was a Wireless
Communications and Public Safety Act. There's a Federal mandate required cell phone
- 10 -
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providers and public safety answering points, basically, like our 911 call centers to
deploy necessary technology to locate 911 calls from cell phones and deployments at two
levels: Phase I which is cell towers, Phase II which is actual location point that uses GPS
triangulization. And back in 2005, of all the counties in the U.S. they had about 400 that
had this technology and one of them is us. So this is the Wailuku Police Department
Dispatch Center in Wailuku. In October 2005, we became the first County in the State to
deploy a wireless compliance system. It's compliant at both Phase I and Phase II, so it
will actually give you a GPS point for a cell phone call. Every terminal has GIS data on
it.
In addition, the data can be projected up into those screens you see on the walls like that.
And so the large screens, if you're in a tactical situation, they can actually put the data up
there and actually follow the tactical situation as it occurs. The numbers, we're talking
about 50 percent 911 calls are cell phones. That number has been increasing the
percentage, so it's probably over that now. And so that's GIS today using different kinds
of information. You're talking information from cell phones, you're talking about base
layers that come from GIS, from State GIS and ours, and satellite photos, and so on, and
so on.
CHAIR BAlSA: So, Bill, essentially what that means is that if I were on a cell phone say at
Hookipa Beach, and I call the Police Department, and I didn't tell them where I was, that
they would, by using GIS, be able to find me or know where I was?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, if your cell phone is GPS-enabled which you have that choice when you
have a cell phone, as soon as you hit 911 they will see a little thing that says that, yes,
they have a coordinate, and they, they can then find it. In addition, if you were in a
moving vehicle and could not speak, but could get 911 in your call, they can track you as
you move along. So they would rebid every five minutes or so. So if you're in a boat
down,

IS
we get
is a
now
the original system started back in
history of Maui County GIS. This is our timeline.
the late' 80s that was the same for pretty much everybody in the State of Hawaii. They
had a Macintosh-based prototype, and then later on in the early '90s they went and
moved to a UNIX based workstation. But, as I say, the real breakthrough came in 1997-that's ten years ago--when we started using Windows-based laptops with a portable and
we started doing live GIS. Basically, we loaded up data, and we actually went out into
the community. We've had meetings in Kihei and Hana, Lanai, Molokai, in this room,
obviously, and basically, we took the GIS with us into the community to help with the
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decision-making process and whatever needed to be done basically. Based on that we
received a special achievement and GIS award in 1999, and in 2000 that's why we were
created, the GIS Division. It was felt that they needed to have GIS move into other
departments and to help facilitate that, and that's how we were created.
Second thing is I always like to point out the concept of live GIS is the same as that one
at, is the same concept as at Police Dispatch. They're running the same kind of a thing,
it's a live GIS. It's running on time. And so one of the things we did when we first sort
of went ahead with the laptop system was actually said, you know what, we're not going
to do this the traditional way which is we have a workstation in the back room, and we
produce paper maps. We're actually going to take it out in the front where everybody
can see it. And that really helped us when we got to the police system.
And this is a few examples, historically of what we've done. In terms of land use, you
know, we can actually bring up aerial photos, parcel data, show the location of a project.
Each of those dots, those points link to photographs that were taken on a field inspection,
and you can bring them up and basically see ground view and overview of the data. You
can also do overlays, and in this case it's flood zones. It shows both tsunami and river
rain, and as well as base flood elevations for the same project. It's something that most
people don't think the GIS can do. This is for data editing and the task here is to find the
typographical error somewhere in those records and there is one. But when you classify
them, you will see the one red dot among all those blue dots. And so that's how you can
actually find an error. ... (change tape, Side 1B) ... Just to go back it is record number four.
On the route it says WI and it should be W5 like the rest of them. And so that's the
error. But it's a lot easier if you do it this way -CHAIR BAlSA: Yeah.

is a community fair in
theme
Again, we go out into the community.
used to be the, fact I did a presentation and it was called,
GIS Will Travel, and
that's, again, take it out into the community. It does two things. One, it gets the
community to realize that you're actually working with them. The second thing is they
can see errors. Remember we talked about finding errors. If there's an error in a Federal
data set we may not see it, the community members will. They'll say, you know what,
this is wrong. This should be like this, and then we can go ahead and correct it. So that's
the other good thing about taking it out into the community.
- 12
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Back to our timeline. While this has been going on there's been sort of an increase in the
accuracy of the data. So when we first started, the first generation, we used Census Tiger
maps and USGS Quad maps. DLG just means digital line graphs which is just a Quad in
digital, and what are called 30 and 90 meter DEMs, digital elevation models. As it
progressed through the last ten or so years the second generation has come out. These are
parcel based. They're based on the TMK parcels for all of the counties. And a new set
ofDEMs came out in ten meter. The, the concept of the ten meter versus 30 meter, that's
the diameter of a pixel on a slide. So 30 meter DEM is 30 meters on each side, 30 by 30.
A ten meter DEM is ten meters on a side, so there's actually nine times more information
in the ten meter than in a 30 meter.
Okay. But what does that actually mean in terms of this third generation? Okay. This is
a 30 meter DEM. You can kind of see, you can see some of the, the valleys, but the flat
areas are kind of undefined. Ten meter, you're actually starting to see much more relief
in the valleys and a little bit more stuff in the, the actual flat area. And you're starting to
see right about here, let me see, see that thing right here? There's something here, but
we're not sure what it is yet. And when you get to this point, now you're statiing to see
roadways, right, and here's the road cut right there.
So there's a road right here. Much more relief in the valleys. So you can actually start to
see smaller areas. And then now we see this thing here, and it's kind of a weird shape.
Anybody recognize that? Okay. That's Lanai City and that shape that we saw is the
sewage treatment plant and the ponds in Lanai City. Again, here's the roads, right, that
goes through here including the ones in the old agricultural area. So let's go back one,
okay. You can see again, you can see the road cuts. Okay. This is not an image. This is
the actual data, elevation data that actually picks up that kind of information. So what
have you done for me lately?

case we
This is how we use
We go out, and we actually drive over roads.
drove through a new subdivision that was actually under construction. So you notice,
we weren't able to go through here. They're still, they're still trenching on the road, and
here they had the equipment on it, and then based on that we can actually go in a draw the
roads. And subsequent to this we've actually re-edited this road here because we've been
able to get in again. But, yeah, we were actually out there before they had actually laid
pavement.
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This is the road tracks we've done as of May. There's a few more that we've done since
then, but that's pretty much the coverage. We intend to do Lanai and Molokai as well.
But we basically tried to drive as many roads that, if there was question about where a
road alignment is, where certain data sets don't match, and that occasionally happens,
we'll go out in the field and actually run it and drive it ourselves.
This is another thing we're working with. We'll do some demos, and you'll see how
small our buttons are. You know, GIS has lots of tools so the buttons are very small.
This is a large button version made for touch screens for first responders. It actually has
real data that we got through the Maui LEPC, that's the Local Emergency Planning
Committee, and basically for hazmat sites. We've been able to pull it in that, and then
you can go ahead and actually operate this thing using large buttons. It makes it a lot
easier for first responders if they're wearing gloves, protective, you know, gear. And it
actually has spatial bookmarks which you can drop the bookmarks down, and have lists,
hit that down arrow, and have lists of all of the places that have hazmats. The various
fertilizer companies, the power plants, HC&S, those kind of things.
High resolution imagery. We worked on a project with the State. Through that project
State GIS purchased a complete set of satellite imagery at no cost to the County. This is a
one meter pixel, very accurate stuff.
LIDAR data. Again, the State had purchased LIDAR data for Kihei and up into
Upcountry, and then later on Lanai, and put that into public domains. So we were able to
go in and use some of this. It's fairly difficult. I have a demo that I can show you how
we actually use this stuff. LIDAR comes in two, two sort of types of data. There is the
bare earth which is used for flood modeling, and then these are what's called extracted
features. So this has all of the structures and vegetation on it. So it's really good for
doing, say, visualization analysis, that kind of a thing. So this is again Wailea. You can
center
Wailea,
a parking structure, and
IS

new ways
we
now
for a more innovative, a more flexible solution, and we use solution not system because
GIS is not there just to be there. It has to be a solution to a problem. Otherwise, it's not
worth putting money into it.
Second, the move to third generation of GIS data will represent some significant talent
challenges, voting technology, and the data framework. So, and we were trying to stay
ahead of that. And then finally the needs of our client agencies and the public are
increasing. And so each year we have to raise the bar in our cartographic problems.
- 14 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 16, 2007

Basically, what you do is once you get that map, then you want to get something else
added to it, or you want it in color, or you want it with this or that. And we try to stay on
top of that.
And that's my contact info, and we'll leave it up there for a little while. We'll be
available for questions after the demos, but basically, and I can bring that up later again
as well, but let's go to our demo.
Okay. This is a fairly old application, old meaning it's probably about six or seven years
old. It is a developmental piece that was later finished so it looks a lot nicer now that's
used by the Clerk's Office, the County Clerk's Office. It's a good example of multiagency, multi-jurisdiction. It was done by the State Office of Elections Statewide, which
then involved the County Clerk's Office in each county. And then in terms of helping to
prepare the data and to get it all together, then it had, work with us. So we worked with
Roy and his staff to try and get the data together, get everything in, and then State
Elections had hired a vendor, a consultant. The consultant put it together.
It also uses data from different sources. So you see there's Maui voters, so that's the

voter list. RPF owner which is the owner names from the real property files. And so
when you go in, you can sort on a name, and of course, they're using my name not the
Council Member's name, but unfortunately he shows up anyway. And so when I click
the okay you watch in those fields, in those different databases you'll see it start to select
everybody named William Medeiros in the County.
CHAIR BAlSA: Wow.
MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. So the idea is that when somebody calls in and says, yeah, I'm
William Medeiros, they can say are you the one Hana, or are you the one Kihei, or
one
okay.

can
so
s at
one
here, and we'll just, we'll just
Lanai, one Paia. We'll just choose Wailuku just for
skip that, and then that's the person's property. So that's the property that ties up. Based
on all this data that's the property that ties up to that P.O. Box. In this case I think it's the
Maui Aikido Society which is not a person, but there it is P.O. Box 724. Okay. So
basically, it's looking at multiple kinds of data, from multiple sources, and basically
doing a sort geographically. It's kind of cool. And like I said the Clerk's Office still uses
that, I think, whenever anybody calls in and says what precinct am I, am I in. Okay.
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Now that was an old one. So now I'm going to show a new one. This is what I call one
million points of LIDAR. LIDAR is an acronym for Light Detection and Ranging. It's
basically radar using light laser. And so they, they shoot the light down at the Earth from
an aircraft, get the reflection, and they can get the elevation. What that creates is, let's
see right here. In this case, 950,000 individual points showing elevation XY, showing the
location and the elevation, which in our, in our field is called Z values, but basically the
elevation. So we're seeing about a thousand, a million points come up. Okay. Almost
done. And just to prove it we'll go in, zoom in. So that's the points. We'll try and hit
one. I missed it. I'm still missing it. Okay. Well, anyway, take my word for it there are
individual points and they have elevations.
Okay. Now we're going to go back to here. Right now I'm going to turn off the points
and just to give you some scale that comes up to about 460 acres, but this is what it
actually, in the real world, that's the area we're looking at, that's one million points.
Okay. The area covered is the area that's known as ballpark. And that's the ballpark
above Polipoli. So what you need to take a look at is the road coming up here that comes
up past this cinder cone, there's a trail, four-wheel drive trail that you can make out going
up here, that's Skyline Trail, and the trail also goes right through this flat area, and then
out the back side. And just to confirm that we have the right location here's the image.
And, again, here's the trail coming, basically it's a four-wheel drive trail coming in. This
is Skyline Trail, and this is the trail that goes through ballpark and continues on. And
now this is going to take a little while to come up, but it's worth it.
So what I'm going to do now is I'm going to take that same data that we saw, the million
points turned into a digital elevation model and the image that we saw. We're going to
pull it up in 3D, and we're going to actually be able to see this in 3D. One of the points I
want to make over here as we watch that, that little blue thing crawl along the screen.
Because when we talked about challenges of the new data, this could be one of the new
started
the,
wasn't able to

a
hardware. And so on occasion we, you know, we buy very, very high
machines.
This is not a low end laptop, this is top of the line from a couple of years ago, and it still
takes this time. That's why I thought it was kind of important when we're doing the
demo, most people think this stuff is, you know, real simple to run, and it, it does take
some processing power to stay on top. We're about halfway there.

And I could take some questions while we're waiting for this. Like I said it is kind, it is
kind of useful to see once it gets up.
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CHAIR BAlSA: Bill, I was going to mention, you know, it's funny how spoiled we've become.
I remember first getting a microwave and being very impressed with its speed, and now I
stand next to it saying come on.
MR. MEDEIROS: That's exactly ...
CHAIR BAlSA: And it's the same thing with the computers. You know, we are transferring so
much data that it takes time, and we're impatient.
MR. MEDEIROS: Exactly. And what happened was when we first started people said, oh, if I
can just see the roads it would be great, and we did that. And then people said, well, now
if we can only see the parcels it would be great, and then just said, well, you know, what
about showing the topography, and we did that. And it's like basically the bar keeps
elevating and especially in our case we have to kind of stay ahead, ahead of that, and this
is one of the things, we're up to about 75 percent, so we're getting close now. But the
interesting thing here is we're waiting for 460 acres now. We're not, we're not pulling
up the entire County of Maui -CHAIR BAlSA: Yeah.
MR. MEDEIROS: --in 3D, high res 3D of 460 acres.
CHAIR BAlSA: Member Johnson, did you have a question?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Bill, because this is, I gather it's running so slow because it's in
need of memory; is that, is that it, the storage?
processmg on

as

as

size
is not a
drive we have
here, but it, s the processing. And here we go. So this is that same
area. And, again, just an orientation. This is the road coming in, that's that fork
the
road this goes up Skyline Trail, and then this is the trail that goes across ballpark, and
then continues on, and this is 3D because now we can actually take a look at that. So
that's that cinder cone that we saw right at where the trail comes up over, and then down.
And you can look at it from any angle. You can also look at it from underneath. So in
the case, we, we've done before, our wells thing, where it can actually show the extruded
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wells that, that, you know, how deep they go under, under the surface of the earth. We
can do that.
But the one thing I wanted to do was, this is data, right, so it's not the real thing.
Definitely not a picture. But what I'm going to do is I'm going to line this up as best I
can with, this way. Okay. So when you're looking at it this way, you come over the traiL
and then you're going through ballpark, and you see that ridge line in the back, that's that
ridge line in the back. All right. So that is the trail going through the ballpark headed
out. And so, yes, so even though this is the model, this is not the real world, this is the
model of the real world, you can actually see that the model is correct. So that's what
makes this powerful.
So one of the questions I had when I was doing the demo is, previously, is what good is
that? Well, what good is that is that you can actually pull that up, and we don't have to as
a group drive up above Polipoli Springs to see what it looks like. We can actually see
what it looks like here, and you can make whatever judgments you do. So if we were
doing a visibility analysis or something along those lines, you don't have to be in the
field. You can actually look at it. And then if you're not, still not sure, you know, you
can then look at the ground photographs and actually check against it. And so those are,
those are my demos. So that's, that's it. So we can do a couple things. We can shut
down if nobody's got any questions about the demos, and then we can set up down here
and do Q and A.
CHAIR BAlSA: Members, should we close up and then take questions?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
much. We're going to take a brief recess to
restore

a ...
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair.
Good morning,
Mr. Medeiros, and thank you very much for that very informative presentation, and, and I
appreciate you going through the history of the GIS program. You know, what really
excited me was the cell phone tracking, and I think that's definitely a real major public
serVIce. Have, have you or anyone in the Department considered some type of
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educational program? Because I think there's a lot of people out there in our community
who are not aware of the capabilities of what your Department is doing, and what it can
do, and what we can look forward to in the future. And for myself as a former school
teacher I get very motivated to see this stuff, and I know our kids, and we've always
talked about promoting technology in our schools. Can you share some thoughts as far as
doing some type of public education program with regards to this?
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, in fact there, there is one called Project East.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: It's in a lot of the high schools if not all. In fact, one ofthe students recently
was actually, you know, we have an annual conference, about 14,000 GIS people show
up in San Diego. And she was actually called up in a plenary session to show her
applications she developed here. I believe she's at, or formerly at King Kekaulike and
now at the University of Arkansas with a scholarship that she won through her GIS
project. And so on that level, yes, we try to, we don't do direct community outreach in
terms of like going out and actually generating interest in GIS, but we try to do it
indirectly. So we participate in GIS day. November is usually GIS day. If we get any
questions or calls from schools we do the best we can to get data to them, and so to help
them out we do quarterly user meetings open to the public, anybody, and totally free, and
people can come in.
And so there's a lot of different ways that that goes out. We occasionally get non-profit
agencies who will get in and say, hey, you know, we need to do something. So even in
the case of they're not doing GIS, we'll get requests for say satellite photos, a print of a
go
and do
also done,
case of

we're becoming sort of like a big brother, but I guess used appropriately, I think s
something very positive for the community. What would you like to see, or what have
you seen in other jurisdictions that Maui County could benefit from in terms of GIS and
augmenting some, some of our other agencies?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, okay. You know, there, it's interesting, on one hand we, we normally
get, we're normally the guys that everybody's going, like, how can you guys do this.
You know, it's like we're, we're not a very large County. We're still under 150,000.
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And when we go to, say, a national conference or to a NACo meeting or something like
that people are kind of surprised that we can do this stuff. I mean there's certain things
that give us a competitive advantage. Part of it is we're on Maui. Okay. We operate at a
different kind of a level than the rest of the world. Okay, and so that actually creates
advantages for us.
The second thing is, yes, there's, there's things, we just had a staff person come back
from a health conference, and some very, very good things in terms of using GIS for, for
health issues. It's not really a County thing, but we've actually helped the Health
Department, and I think it was the child immunization project that they had. So we've
tried to do that, but yeah, there's many, many more things that we can do in terms of the
health side. You know, we're pretty good on the public safety side. We're pretty good
on, on pretty much the, in terms of the County stuff. There's, because of the complexity
of the data, and you want to do the best you can, some things, some projects don't
progress as fast as other ones, and you just kind of have to live through that because what
you don't want to do is have them rush it in and actually not be good. But, so, but in
terms of generally I think we're actually doing pretty good as a County in terms of GIS.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, that's good news to hear and keep up the good
work. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo ...
CHAIR BAlSA: We're going to have trouble here. Member Medeiros and Mr. Medeiros. '"
(laughter) . ..

s
a matter
equipment into the hands of the individual officer whether it's, you know, and, and
we've, we've attended a few law enforcement conferences when we were working on the
police system. They have a radio system that actually clips up to their uniform. It has a
panic button, and that immediately uses the same process that the cell phones do in
sending out a GPS point, and saying, yeah, I'm in, I'm in trouble, and here's where I am.
And so they don't have to say anything, they don't need to, it's like, and we've also
talked to some of the utilities that have people working on lines out in nowhere, you

- 20 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 16, 2007

know, out and away from the normal traffic and that that would be a good thing for them
to do to reduce their insurance rates of actually being able to do that.
And in addition, the last thing is that the County bus system, I don't want to put
Mr. Boteilho on the, on the spot, but the County bus system, the operator of the bus
system has contracted with a service, that they can plot the location of the buses. I don't
think it's real time. I think it's refreshed every five minutes or so, but same thing. It's
using a cell phone in the, in the, in the bus. It tracks where they are, the speed they're
traveling at, all this other information. And so the, the technology exists, and it's just a
matter of you just going out and deploying it, and then, and then using it. You know,
using it for, for something as opposed to just looking at it and saying, yeah, this is kind of
cool or something. But, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. That's really good to know that it's available. I
want to just go a little bit beyond what Member Molina asked. And, and mine was are
there regulations on the use of GIS and GPS when it starts to border on privacy invasion?
MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. Many years ago when we had first started looking at putting data that
we had onto the internet the County Council did put a restriction on us that we cannot put
individual names of landowners on the internet. That restriction does not fall into other
departments in the County. Okay. So, but in the case of our stuff, we will strip out the
owner names. I mean internally within the County we leave it on, but if it, if we put it
out into a public place, like we normally get our data up on the State GIS Clearinghouse,
their website for download, we'll strip out owner names, and then just go by what's
called major owners. So A&B will show up. Everybody else shows up as private and
doesn't have an individual owner. And that was based on certain issues of stalking. You
know, we've, again, you know, we go to the conferences, and you see both sides, the
good things, the bad things, and that, yeah, that's one of the things that we do, and that
~'-'u on us
was a
IJH.....

a
now
now
is to ,>"",rwlo
And so, yeah, we try to be cautious about that, but as far as I know it comes down to
FOIA, the Freedom
Information Act versus the, the private, private side, the privacy
side, and so, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and how, how would the GIS, GPS systems available
to us assist search, rescue, and recovery operations?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Actually, yeah, that, I mean that's one of these things that you can, if you can
get a good reading on where a person is, a hiker that's injured, you can tell whether
they're at the top of the mountain or at the bottom, ... (change tape, Side 2A) ... basically,
hike up or rappel down, and you can actually track your people going out to it. So one of
the things that we've run a scenario with the police was the concept of a drifting boat.
That somebody's out there, you know, I mean they could even be in a kayak. If you can
get a GPS signal off of them, you know, so if they call 911, somebody picks it up, they're
in a boat, and they're drifting, you can rebid that call, say every five minutes or ten
minutes, and actually get a drift rate and direction, and then that narrows down your
search area, but if you know which direction they're going as opposed to if somebody
gets lost in the Alenuihaha Channel, you're going to search, what, 3,000, 10,000 square
miles looking for them, because they, that is like a freight train, and they can, and it's just
go.
So the idea is that, in those kind of situations if you can get a good signal off of it, it
makes it a lot easier to find them. You know, basically within, you know, tens, maybe
100 meters depending on how good the signal is, but still a lot better than just knowing,
yeah, I'm somewhere out between Kahoolawe and the Big Island, and I'm drifting, right.
So, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, that, that's really good to know because, you know,
Hana lost five fishermen a long time ago, and we searched for a long time, and never
found anything until many years later a grave was discovered on one of the atoll's in the
South Pacific. So this technology would really be able to, you know, help fishermen that
get stranded or have mechanical problems. If they have the technology with them or a
cell phone, then, you know, it's easier to rescue or recover them.
And finally, I know when I was still working for the County, Public Works, Highways
asked us to
our storm drains, sewer, sewer

not
: Right. Well, we

it

West

when I was in West

Maui.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, and, but, there were, there were two projects going on, and they were
going to do it in Hana. Hana, the cloud cover became the issue. We still have the data.
It, it was one of those in the early '90s when we kind of would, would just kind of
develop that system, and I don't think a whole lot came out of that. But we did learn a lot
22 -
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about what we could not do with GIS. One of the things that was proposed at that time
was to use the photography to create parcel maps. And it seemed logical at the time that,
yeah, you could, you know, find everybody's fences and stufflike that, but in the, in the
end it turns out it was not, it was not feasible to do it.
But, but, yes, that's, so in terms of the transition of technology in those days that's, you
know, if you wanted manholes you had to go and paint the manhole, and, and fly an
airplane, and take a picture. Now you take your handheld device, and you get out there,
and you get it within a foot. And so that's how things have changed from 1992 to 2007 is
that now we don't need an airplane to go and locate the manholes. You just have to find
it on the ground, and shoot that point, and, and collect the point. And so it makes it a
whole lot easier, that we don't have to have a, at that time I believe the contract was, like,
almost 200 grand.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, you know, we spent 12 grand on a high end GPS, and we can go out
and collect it now and all it takes it time, yeah, so ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Madam Chair.

Okay.

Thank, thank you, Mr. Medeiros.

Thank you,

CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Vice-Chair Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Bill, you mentioned during your presentation to I guess locate
individuals who may be, you know, in need of assistance that their phone must be GPS
enabled. How do you know whether your phone is GPS enabled, because I frankly don't
know
is?

other thing just, just to mention is that they also use, my new phone has a chaperone
my case for me to
kind of an application which you can set up for your children or
actually define the areas that they can stay within and the areas that they, they can, cannot
go outside of. And the phone will track using GPS whether they're inside or outside that
area and will call you up once they've gone to the mall, when you told them not to go to
the mall. And so, yeah, the, the, each, the one, five years ago this is all theory and this is
now getting to the point where, yeah, if you have a, a parent with Alzheimer's you get
them a bracelet and the bracelet will have a GPS, and if they, if you need to find them
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you go and you just, you have to pay for the service which then tracks, tracks them but,
yeah, you can go ahead and do that. So it's like in the, in the, we're hitting this huge
upslope in terms of the technology, and yes, you can, you can use that GPS and the cell
phone to give you directions when you're driving, and so, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and that to me I think so many people we're unaware of
the fact that we have these capabilities and for many people I think it would be really
good, because if you were knocked unconscious, and you know, you have that feature on,
you didn't even call 911, but somebody could track you noting, you know, that, look if
we call the cell phone at least the signal would be reaching.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And I'm, I'm assuming 'cause I watch CSI and all these other shows
. . . (laughter). .. that this is something that, you know, it, it can have practical
applications and really be of benefit to people who are, particularly people that go hiking
a lot, or you know, or are extreme sports enthusiasts where they can get into trouble very
easily.
MR. MEDEIROS: Exactly. Anybody who's kayaking should have either a GPS enabled phone
or cell phone and a GPS unit with them because it's a lot easier. Even if you call and tell
them I'm at this latitude and longitude for them to find you. The case of the Mary Jo,
yes. They were, they were thousands of miles away. All right. It wasn't like they were
just lost 20 miles away from sea. They, once they got into that channel. They don't call
it Kealaikahiki for nothing. It is the pathway to Tahiti, and they will take you out a long
ways, and so, yes, absolutely.
JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I really appreciate this because I think that what it
I appreciate you having this is to give

that there are practical applications
JOHNSON:
just amazing. So I, I
beyond just planning and looking at land use issues. The other question I had is because
years ago I was in a place on the mainland, in fact it was really, it was Carmel, California.
And I had an opportunity to visit with some individuals who were at the Planning
Department there. And I questioned about these poles, and they were up at construction
sites or areas where, I guess, construction was going to be taking place. And I asked
about them, and they were story poles which basically showed, because they had an
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ordinance in place anyway that dealt with height and view planes, but it showed what the
visual obstruction would be if a particular building were to be built.
So my thought would be that you could, I guess, ostensibly create your own visual story
poles if you were given the base elevation, and then actually just put in what views would
be obstructed particularly along view corridors where, you know, you can't visualize it.
And that to me is something that's really helpful. So would you be able, I guess, to assist
the Planning Department particularly when a shoreline property is being developed and
looking at what the view plane obstruction would be?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, that, definitely. The technology, basically the software used and the
data we use, yeah, that's, it's definitely doable, and I have a list over here of things that I
think they are doing some of that. So it might be a good idea to ask the Planning
Department and say, hey, are you doing 3D modeling, and are you doing 3D models of
buildings, and take a look at the kind of work that they're doing.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, I appreciate that. And one final question because I know that
budget will be corning up the early part of next year, because the technology changes
and, of course, the software to run these various applications always is advancing. It
seems by the time you buy it it's already out-moded. What, you know, I've seen or some
of, like, I noticed you were using ArcViz or whatever it is, and then there's DataViz and
all these other programs. If you were to look at, I guess, making some of your
applications more user friendly or more current with what technology exists in the
marketplace, are there programs that you would be looking to purchase that we, as a
Council, you know, would at least benefit from understanding how that could be useful,
and what applications, and what the costs are. Would you be able to address that issue?
MEDEIROS: Yeah, from the software side we use industry standards, so where, where
edge
we are looking at is software

s

things, depending how it goes at budget
internally, you will likely get an
One of
equipment request from us. That's, that was not a sales pitch, but it sort of maybe
worked like that but it, yeah. What happens, and just, just in terms of the equipment
thing what we try to do is we try to at least every second year buy some new equipment,
two or three machines. As these machines get replaced we put them down to become our
e-mail machines, you know, the standard day-to-day stuff. So we get a lot of life off
these machines. We don't, you know, we can't use the, the standard e-mail machine that
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everybody else uses, you know, so we don't buy the same product that 90 percent of the
people in the County uses. So we buy special high end workstations, but we try not to
just dump 'em after three years, we do have them do other things.
And so, but, yeah, basically, you can pretty much expect, and you've seen from us
already in the past is that pretty, every other year we come in for equipment, two or three
workstations to replace a couple, and then we kind of keep moving on. And we try to
keep one workstation that is kind of available to everybody, kind of off on, on its own, so
if somebody needs to actually do processing, they can actually come there, and we'll help
them work with it. And just to give you an idea, the, the last machines we bought were
all one terabyte in memory. So two 500 gigabyte drives maxed out in terms of RAM,
maxed out in terms of video card. And so, they, the, yeah, we, we don't, we don't skimp
on that, because it really affects the productivity, and it's a lot cheaper for me to buy a
good machine, then to pay my hourly rate to sit there while things refresh. All right. So,
yeah, and hopefully this year we'll buy a new laptop with maybe a little bit more RAM
and, you know, to speed things up a little, so ...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I really appreciate it because you're talking more
about the hardware as opposed to the software. One thing sparked my interest and that's
that where you basically have the memory and everything right in your machine I know
that with this wireless age our high performance computing center basically sells time
slots for, I guess, you know, all different defense projects, you know, business
applications. Do we have that capability where if you need something to run very rapidly
to wirelessly access one of their data banks to have something run more efficiently or
more quickly?
MR. MEDEIROS: It's, it's possible. What will happen is you will have a, the issue of the actual
pipe, the actual speed over the band, the bandwidth of the pipe itself, the actual

JOHNSON:

very

U!ULvU,

CHAIR BAlSA: Chair Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I, Ijust want to reinforce the issue of the privacy concerns we
have. What's interesting enough, a person that always advocated public information was
the Member that drove the concern of privacy which was Wayne Nishiki. But saying
that, Mr. Medeiros, I would say that regarding our system I don't have a problem of
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redaction and that if a person still wants information there's other means of getting that
information whether it be sensitive or not. But I don't think we're required to have all
information accessible through the, through the internet, because I have my concerns, and
I think some of the Members have mentioned them whether it be social issues with
access, or related to the legal system and, and crime. I think we need to be sensitive to
what we provide because there are still the traditional means of getting those information.
But saying that, let's get back to the County. Two things I'm going to ask you in
specific. Is your Division assisting Finance and Real Property Tax regarding mapping
efforts, or other requirements with subdivisions for Public Works to help process and
eliminate the, the time it takes for us to do it traditionally so that we can then accordingly
have things in place for proper taxation purposes, or subdivision approvals, or TMK
assignments for specific lots? Is that something you assist with?
MR. MEDEIROS: We, we were having meetings with them looking at the system because the
Finance Department has a vendor that's been working on it for a couple years now, of
basically taking all of their paper maps and creating an entire layer in AutoCAD. which is
a different version. It's not exactly GIS, but it's similar in terms of the, and we're
anxiously awaiting that the, the completion of the project. We've gotten another release
of sample data that we can pull up into our system, because GIS can read AutoCAD files,
DWG files. And so we are trying to work with them on that, in the, in, with DSA
subdivisions when they were doing the addressing project back, oh, about five years ago.
we worked very closely with them in terms of trying to get them GIS support for their
addressing project. And, and I believe in terms of the meetings that we've had they are
now requesting all subdivisions to corne in AutoCAD form. So it's corning in digital
anyway. So I think there are things that are occurring.

COUNCILMEMBER
you assisted
Works and the other Departments
with their capital improvements tracking whether it be construction management and
onsite adjustments through change orders?
MR. MEDEIROS: There was some discussion of that a few years ago, but they, but the, the, the
direction that project took because there was a, there was a proposal for a system that
would track those kind of projects, and it kind of went in a different direction. We were,
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we were consulted early on in the process, but they, they pretty much I think were headed
database direction. In, that being said, if, if someone comes in with a project, you know,
they're doing a specific project, and they, they need us to provide support and give them
information and those kinds of things, we would then take that on in a, in a project by
project, but we're not directly involved in the, the larger accumulation of say CIP projects
or something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do you have the capability under mapping to do accurate
enough topography maps for the County, especially with County properties and potential
uses, so we can see some ofthe challenges either by elevations or terrain?
MR. MEDEIROS: Generally, but not, I think we'll get better as this next generation comes out.
But even at, say at a two meter DEM, if you're creating let's say five foot contours,
depending on the property you would probably have to go and, and reshoot, you would
probably have an engineer come and redo it, I mean if you're actually going to go and do
a property. But if you're going to look at a general, you know, you say you're going to
look at a new highway, ten miles of highway, how much cut and fill you're going to
estimate and stuff, I think the new generation of data is going to, going to give you a
good rough estimate of those kind of things. But I think what, what, and, and that's part
of our, our thing is that a model is a model. It is not the real world.
And so, you know, models do a representation of the real world. And so in terms of, you
know, let's say if you're going to do the parking lot next door for a building, you're not
going to use, you're not going to use our data, you're going to go out there and actually
survey it, and actually get it to much more accurate levels than we would have.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So are we getting there or are you telling me we still need to
use surveyors and actual pin placements?

Because
going to be
you,
reason we, we
wars within,
departments.
the Department of Management is we don't want
And we're not going to pay for every Department to have their own individual system.
Okay. This is one County. We have finite financial resources. So what is the challenges
you have, that you can tell us today, regarding turf wars or whether or not we need to pay
for another individual department system because they won't work with your programs?
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MR. MEDEIROS: In terms of MIS what we found is that we're not, that they service the 90
percent of the, the County that uses the standard machines, and that we are kind of, don't
fit within that category for the most part. So, we have ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What is, what is standard to you, Mr. Medeiros?
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, you know, the, the standard machine that you would say go down to
Costco or someplace like that and actually pick one up, not supporting big boxes, but just
generally that you would be able to pick up. And it would do what you need. You would
do word processing, it would do e-mail, it would do those kind of things, and that's fine.
And, but for the, the processing we do we can't use those kind of machines. So we end
up specing [sic] our own equipment. Now that we're doing touch screen we actually
went and got a touch screen tough book. Basically, it's a very durable, you know, drop
from six feet onto concrete floor kind of a thing. Well, yeah, you're not going to get that,
most of the people in the County getting those kind of equipment. So at that level we sort
of internally kind of build our own specs.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So Countywide regarding GIS needs there is only one system
and that comes through your Division?
MR. MEDEIROS: Basically, we establish the specs. So the question in the public testimony
was can we integrate across departments? And the answer is, yes, we all pretty much use
the same software. Again, you know, all of the GIS agencies that we deal with all use
some form of ESRI software either ArcView, or ArcInfo, whatever. We use the same
base which is the parcel base that, at whatever level it is, and we use the same kind of
satellite imagery. We use the same kinds of other data. And so every, you know, from a
technical standpoint we establish these, these kind of things, and we work that way. So
data that's being produced in Water Department, it comes to us, it overlays right on our
same

we
assistance and those
things,
we try to keep
at it.
the case of police system we don't do dispatch, but we certainly provide a lot of help
data, but we let them use it.
if it works for them, and it saves people that's
good. And we're not going to get involved in the management issues in terms of how
they do dispatch, or their work flow. Our job is just technical, go in and do that technical
aspect.
If something was to crop up that becomes an issue, that's why the Managing Director and
the Mayor, that's the other reason that we're in Department of Management is that we
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don't get the layers between us and the, the, essentially the Chief Executive. It doesn't
go more than two steps from us. But if there becomes an issue where we need to get
something, and it's necessary for the County, the Managing Director and the Mayor
that's their job to make sure we get it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So are you telling us this morning that if there is a need, we
don't need to go and pay private consultants to do the work, they can come to your
Division and get the work done in this area?
MR. MEDEIROS: It depends on the specific work. Okay. So there's some things that we do as,
as if we were consultants to other agencies, and there's some things that, yeah, we just
don't have the, the staffing or the expertise that's kind of, you know, there's something
things that we're not really good at yet, and we still would go out to a, to a private
contractor. But in terms of if, like in the case of the Clerk's office, all right, when they
needed to get their data, paper data into digital we did it. We did it internally even
though they had a consultant working who built that system and integrated everything
together. The actual line work we sat there with, with Shirley and Roy, and we went
through line by line and made sure that all our precincts were in correctly and those
things. So we did that as if we were their consultant. But, you know, I don't want to -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. MEDEIROS: --I, I hesitate saying we can do everything because we can't, but I think ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, I'm not saying you should do everything, Mr. Medeiros.
I'm just saying what you should, what you are capable of you should be doing for the
departments.

s
to
it
the next item that the Chair has, graciously she has put on
agenda, so you can with all
those documents that we were told is recent, recent enough to be utilized for planning
purposes and map out the water study and all of their infrastructure things. You have the
ability to map out Public Works road systems, and ditches, and diversion routes. You
have the ability of placing hydrants on the system for fire and water requirements. That,
we have all those capabilities that you can do then?
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MR. MEDEIROS: The, the technical aspects, yes. And in the case of hydrants we're actually
working with Water Department to create a hydrant layer.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You have arrangements and agreements. You know, I think
Ms. Johnson brought up the, the use of the super computer to assist us or what you can do
to enhance our efforts with possible collaborations with the super computer at University
of Hawaii. You also have something similar with Pacific Disaster Center because they
use a lot of GIS, GPS programming also.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, we work fairly closely with them. One of the things we haven't touched
on is the, the modeling that are done, and that's one of the things that, yeah, we're not,
you know, we don't consider ourselves to be experts in models. We certainly know how
to use them, but we don't create them. And so that's one of the things that we work with
Pacific Disaster Center on, the risk and vulnerability assessment. If you remember the
folks from Prescott College that came and did the fly throughs, you know, what happens
if... (change tape, Side 2B) '" They also did a wildfire model, a wildfire propagation model
and that was also done by PDC. So our job is not to drive that process, but rather to
participate, and we provide whatever data we can provide, and sort of help them while
they're experts go ahead and actually produce the model. And so, yeah, so we, yeah, we
do work very closely with PDC.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much for my opportunity.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros, just one question from the Chair. It sounds like
your Department is doing an incredible amount of very, very important work, and as I sat
here during the budget session, the, the previous one that just was the trial by fire for us
new Council Members, almost every department came in and needed more staff. And
said we have too much work, and we need more people. Does your Department have the
same issue?

example. You
we
the system every day.
Same thing with Clerk's office. So when there's a call, Clerk's office, they use that GIS
application. And so if we get to that point we really don't have to become a big
department or division, because what we're doing is we're just getting things out to
people. It's the same way that word processing used to be a job title, but now everybody
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does their, their own. I mean it's a lot easier to get that technology out to other people. If
we can do that we, we don't have to get very large.
Now, that being said, if things change and if things, if the approach would be to have a
centralized system that we would have from a management perspective doing that then,
yes, then we would probably have more demands in the future. But I think right now, I
think the two, the two will be fine as long as we don't change what we do and the way we
do it. I think we're, I think we're going to be good with the two people.
CHAIR BAlSA: I think that's a very good thing to think about as we look at how we'd like to
handle these kinds of administrative support services to all the departments. Do we like it
centralized, or do we want to give the departments more responsibility and let them
manage their data and develop what they need? So that's, that's a very honest reply, and
I appreciate that a lot. Members, if you don't have a lot more questions I'd like to
arrange that we take a break in about five minutes. So, Mr. Medeiros, Councilmember
Medeiros, if you would like to ask your question, and then the Chair would like us to take
our break.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Madam Chair. I just have one question that
was raised in my mind from the discussion. And, Mr. Medeiros, in your modeling that
you presented you identified being able to see a water well; is that correct?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, we, we've actually been able to, like, show the depth.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So because of the water issues confronting this
County would you be able to map, like, aquifers and under, subsurface dikes and tunnels,
and the size of aquifers and so forth?

was
at source area
area
is not
sources could be East Maui, the demands going to be South Maui, and actually take
a look at those kind of things. And so it would be interesting to get maybe a, a follow-up
on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and you were able to identify that well just because
data was presented to you that that was the location and so forth; right? It wasn't
something that you could see underground?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, we, basically what we had was we had a, a file, a GIS file that showed
the location of the well, so it's a dot -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: --and it had the well depth as a, as an attribute, and we basically just used
that to extrude down to say, okay, this is, based on the data that we have this is the, the
well depth. And so, so long as you have the, the point, or an XY coordinate to locate the
point and a well depth you can put it in 3D and actually take a look at that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. That's encouraging, you know, for us as far as our
water, you know, issues. But thank you, Mr. Medeiros, for the information and even
though I know you said, you know, you weren't here to sell your agency you did a pretty
good job of, of doing that prior to budget. So I appreciate your presentation and your
information. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Medeiros, and thank you very much, Mr. Medeiros.
Thank you, Managing Director Morrison. Members, any burning questions before we
dismiss our presenters? We'd like to thank you very much, and we will take our break
now and come back at 11 :00. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:50 a.m.
11:04 a.m.

CHAIR BAlSA: ... (gavel) . .. The meeting of the Planning Committee is back in order. Thank
you for the break, folks, it was very nice to have a little chance to stretch. And the Chair
with your permission, Members, would like to defer the previous item.

MEMBERS

NO OBJECTIONS.

Our second item today is regarding
proposed
Study.
is a carryover from our, two weeks ago when we
our other Planning
Committee meeting, and it was generated by Councilmember Danny Mateo.
Councilmember Mateo contends that the County's decision makers do not possess
sufficient data about basic, basic infrastructure capacity and future needs particularly in
the very important fields of water supply, wastewater, and transportation. We began our
discussion on, last October 2nd with presentations from Planning, Department of Water
Supply, and the Department of Environmental Management.
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Today, I would like to hear from the Department of Public Works and the Department of
Transportation. I will then open the floor for discussion and questions to any of the
Departments. Again, I will check once more, is there anybody in the, who would like to
testify? If not, without objections, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR BAlSA: Testimony is closed. Mr. Arakawa was here, oh, there you are, Milton.
(laughter) . .. Oh, you're swift. You're swift. You were out in the audience, and you
were at the table. Thank you very much. Joining us today we have our Director of
Public Works, Milton Arakawa. And, Milton, we'd like to hear your thoughts on this
issue. If you would, please.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Madam Chair. As far as long-term planning for infrastructure
we basically are working with the Planning Department on the General Plan Update. We
view the General Plan and the Community Plans as our umbrella document which
establishes overall priorities for the County in terms of infrastructure provision. One of
the main documents, at least for us, which is being produced as part of the Maui Island
Plan is a CIP Implementation Plan which will be one, one chapter of that Maui Island
Plan. So the Department, the Planning Department is working on finalizing this CIP
Implementation Plan as part of this General Plan Update. So, you know, that, we look
forward to reviewing that document and ensuring that all of our roadway and drainage
needs are addressed.
Specifically, as far as County collector roadways some of these have been included in the
community plans in the past, and we believe that this is a very good, very good thing to
continue. Once the plans are shown within the community plan documents themselves,
process of trying to obtain Federal funds
and
we would go

Thank you,

Arakawa.

questions for

Arakawa?

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Have you been made aware--this is more for our future
projects, Director,--have you been made aware through your conversations with State and
Federal representatives of the issue of funding our STIP projects and what kind of impact
you foresee financially on this County whether it be short-term or, or, the long-term
needs?
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CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKA W A: Madam Chair, the, we have had discussions with the State DOT about
upcoming years STIP, and they have notified us that as far as Federal funding the
situation is not very optimistic. Although it still remains to be seen it looks like Federal
funding may be cut in future years. In addition, the State has also notified us that they
would like to take the opportunity to use whatever Federal funds that the State receives to
emphasize implementation of State projects. With, which means, you know, a lesser
portion of the pie for County projects.
And basically for, for instance, for Maui island if you look at many of the major roadway
projects here these are State projects. Just as an example, Lahaina bypass, realignment of
Honoapiilani Highway, the airport access roads, four-Ianing [sic] of Haleakala Highway,
Paia bypass, just to name some of the projects. So that's basically the situation with
regard to Federal funding.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What specific County projects in your position do you see of
major impact to the County with, with that type of State attitude?
MR. ARAKAWA: Forus ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: North-South Collector is now gomg to be on the back
burner? Again, I just throwing that out as, is that one of the projects that gets impacted?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, for us, I think we, we would work on this, and I realize the, the, the
STIP basically goes out for a relatively short-term, three-four years. Funding priorities
may change during that time, but as a County we're looking at establishing some sort of
General
Update.
General
Update

us

status
and your
environment out
existing
Department's efforts particularly with the road system to maintain or make those
appropriate improvements that standards have required us to address?
MR. ARAKAWA: Maintenance is always going to be an issue, and of course the more we build
the more we have to keep up with the maintenance. And maintenance is oftentimes you
can use in analogies like maintaining your car. Obviously, if you don't do your oil
changes regularly, and you just defer that, you know, you're going to get a bigger bill
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later on because something else more major is going to be breaking down. It's sort of the
same thing with maintenance of infrastructure. We really try to keep the infrastructure in
fairly good shape to begin with, otherwise, if we defer it then, you know, we're going to
have more major problems. And it basically comes down to, it's going to come down to
funding, and how much we can afford, and how much we can stretch our dollar to, you
know, maximize whatever resources we have.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So the current situation we are in which is basically from at
least two paving contractors who have decided to merge and now there's only one paving
contractor you have seen then prices go up on our projects when we go out for bids?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct. The prices for asphalt have gone up quite significantly over
the past five to six years. And so we are looking at other alternatives to try to see how we
can maXimIze our resources. One alternative we're looking at is increased use of
concrete, for instance. Concrete has always been more expensive than asphalt in the past,
but with the increase in asphalt prices it's becoming more feasible.
So we're looking at new technologies called ultra, ultra-thin white topping which some of
the other Counties have already used as demonstration projects. We're hoping to do
something here as well to do, to have that as an alternative to asphalt. We're also looking
at, we're also purchasing some software. It's pavement management system basically to
try to get a better handle on what kinds of maintenance activities should be done on our
existing roads so that we can more systematically address, you know, maintenance issues.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Does that include reviewing the current standards that we
have for major roads, secondary roads, collector roads? Are you looking at those
standards to whether it can be revised to address some of your maintenance issues?

one
m
to give up the floor for my, my colleagues. Last budget we asked
to consider
whether or not, like the County, that Tacoma, and her, their sister cities, in the State
Washington do is whether or not the County needs to consider then, because of the
infrastructure issues that Mr. Mateo and other Members have high priority of concern
with, whether or not we now need to invest our funds and create a paving, repaving
program in this County? You know, Tacoma as a county does the repaving, and all the
sister cities within the jurisdiction hires the county to do their paving as one way to
address the needs of timely project completions. So, have you moved that idea forward
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within your divisions or your departments so that upcoming budget we may have some
type of options to consider?
MR. ARAKAWA: We've discussed that particular approach, whether or not we should increase
our in-house resurfacing capability. We're talking about, and we're still tossing this idea
about trying to purchase equipment. We'd have to hire additional staff to do the in-house
resurfacing. Our thought, at least at this point, would be to try to start off relatively small
where we do more patching along short stretches of road that may need such work, and
then move to something bigger if it warrants itself.
One of the issues here is even if we buy the equipment to do the resurfacing in-house, we
would still have to buy the asphalt from the batch plant which is owned by the one
paving, paving company here on Maui. What they will charge us to purchase asphalt
from them is, is not known. So that's, that's a big "X," I guess, at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I'm open to us trying to find different ways, and
I can inform you, Madam Chair and my colleagues, that I'll, I'll be leaving tonight for
Dallas to chair our National Transportation Committee's workshop for the next two days
to talk specifically about highways, and transit issues, and funding of how to deal,
because this is not just a Maui County issue, Chair, this is a major national issue
regarding the aging road system of the country including the major interstates, and, and
whether or not, what role transit should play, and again, who's going to pay the subsidies
to run those program. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, and we look forward to the information that you'll bring back.
You know, there's the old saying no sense inventing the wheel. And when we go around
the country and, actually nowadays the world, looking at what other people are doing we
can learn so much. So we're glad you're going. Bon voyage.

ARAKAWA: Yes, I
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay, and do you have any comment about this particular
component? I know we went through the different scenarios as a Committee, and I'm
just curious to see if you have any thoughts of where this fits into the infrastructure
discussion?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson, I, I would prefer to defer on your question to the
Director of Environmental Management. She is here, and she can answer your question.
CHAIR BAlSA: Would you like to wait until we excuse Mr. Arakawa and bring back
everybody?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, that's, that's, that's fine. And, you know, I think the, the
questions that Chair Hokama has asked I, I also appreciate. One other question, Milton,
and that, that is that because I know you've been trying to track down deferral
agreements, and where the monies have gone and, you know, to me it all ties into
infrastructure, because in order to, I guess, implement the infrastructure component you
need the capital. Do we have, or do you have plans to look at with regard to the needs of
our community, do you have plans to look at what it would take to upgrade existing
infrastructure to bring it to a level that would be commensurate with the needs of the
community, and would you be looking to private development to do this, or would you be
looking at the County to actually accomplish this?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson, I, I think that issue should be addressed as part of
this CIP Implementation Plan which is being done as part of the General Plan Update.
And, and I, if I may, where I think we kind of fell short last time was that we basically
included projects, basically as a wish list, without taking a look at what the financial
consequences would be or what it would cost to provide all of these good things that we
wanted.
So what we're hoping to do, at least this go around, is try to be a little bit more
reasonable as far as what we can afford, and, and then put that in, you know, in, in the
general plan. Then it's more achievable and it's something within more of our price
range. But, you know, you'd have to go through all of the hearing processes so that
basically
we can afford
what, you
can
near

to say
we
we were to go
direction where we're looking at something that's a little bit different from what we've
had done in the past, do you agree that we should include the operational expenses, some
of the personnel costs, things that are actually going to be tied to a particular eIP project
and that will be recurring?
MR. ARAKAWA: Sure. The, the operating costs that will be incurred from any capital
improvement should be considered prior to the actual approval of the funds to actually
build this facility.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay, and you haven't seen that as one of the, one of the things or
one of the components that has been in other infrastructure studies; have you?
MR. ARAKAWA: Generally, when we submit CIP requests there is a question regarding
whether or not we anticipate additional operating monies and some, you know, basically
do not require or may have just a small incremental increase, and then we'll be noting it
on the CIP sheets, and it's taken into account during the budget process. But I think we,
we pretty much focused on the, you know, the big capital numbers, and it certainly is
wise to take into account the, the incremental increase that takes place with all of the
capital improvements that we do as far as operating costs are concerned.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thanks very much.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. Mr. Arakawa, as part of the
infrastructure, you know, plans and inventory in the West Maui area where, you know, I
was in charge of Public Works, the Federal Government builds a lot of systems and West
Maui has the most systems as far as flood control, watershed, and water quality systems,
and it certainly benefits the community and Maui County. However, after these facilities
are constructed they are then turned over to the County for operation and maintenance,
and the 20 years I was there and all the new systems that came online for the County to
maintain and operate we never got any money for the additional equipment that was
required or for any staffing of the new facilities. Is there any Federal money available for
those purposes now?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as operations and maintenance I'm not aware of Federal money that's
that. I,
aware that with the, that Lahaina Watershed Flood Control

as
can predict it because, you know, these projects are
by
you know,
Corp
Engineers and the Natural Resources Conservation Service that used to be Soil
Conservation at one time, and I know when I was there, there were eight systems, the
most in any district in Maui County, and there's more in the plans. I know Lahainaluna
and Kauaula area are getting more systems. So I'm, I'm just concerned that the County is
certainly receiving these systems to kind of protect the environment and the ocean and
yet, you know, we don't receive any funds to operate and maintain these systems.
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My, my next question is on drainages. Does the Public Works keep an inventory of our
drainage systems ... (change tape, Side 3A) ... throughout the County?
MR. ARAKAWA: We have, I don't know, I can't say our records are all that thorough to tell
you the truth, but there are private drainage systems, there are State drainage systems -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. ARAKAWA: --and, of course, there are County drainage systems as well. And these can
be all intermixed within one drainage area.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. ARAKAWA: It depends on the, the types of agreements that have been forged over the
years, or you know, who owned the land. But the, the basic principals that any
development activity that occurs within any watershed cannot cause any adverse affects
on downstream and adjacent properties. So that's something we, we regulate from a,
from a, you know, basically a development services administration standpoint.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, my, my, my concern is that when we have large
developments that are responsible for construction of the drainage system within their
project that eventually it's tied into County systems. And if we don't keep an inventory
on it how do we know, you know, how much drainages we have throughout the County
and what may be the impact in adding more drainages to it if we don't keep a current
inventory or a current capacity of the County systems right now?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, any, any change to the lay of the land, whether it's a development
development proposal that comes in they would be required to do a drainage report done
professional
would basically
downstream

And the onsite drainages would
basins, and so forth to capture the runoff and, and retain it?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MR. ARAKAWA: This would, they would retain basically the additional flows caused by the
development itself.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and, and, and finally, I don't know if it comes under
Public Works or it comes under Planning about parking infrastructure and also hardening
of surfaces in, in project developments, because the more surfaces we harden, and the
less permeable areas we have to, for water to seep in, then the more runoff we have for
our drainages. Who, who monitors or keeps an inventory of parking structure or
hardening surfaces as it affects drainages?
MR. ARAKAWA: As far as parking that's onsite itself that's, that's regulated by the Planning
Department. It depends on the use, and they have certain parking requirements based on
various uses, and they also would regulate the size of the spaces, the aisle widths,
landscaping within the lots, and, and so on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Director Arakawa. Thank you, Madam
Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Member Molina. And after Member Molina has his opportunity I'd like to
excuse Mr. Arakawa, ask him to stay, and allow our representative from Transportation
to have his turn. He sat through two meetings, and we really appreciate it, Wayne, but
we're trying to get through this in a logical and, and, you know, systematic way.
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Mr. Arakawa. I'd
like to keep, keep my focus more on the infrastructure dealing with roads. What is the
Department's position on infrastructure related to roads? I mean are, are we really far
behind in catching up with infrastructure when you consider the rate of growth here
as a

more
Issues.
humps, speed table programs, and, and, and maintenance.
biggest local issues.
IJ,"""-UJ"I",,

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, of course, the challenges with the cost of asphalt, and we
only have one paving company, and I know they're having a hard time keeping up with
the projects that we've appropriated monies for and to, I guess, complete these
resurfacing projects on time as we sometimes hope for, because I know with the, for
example, in my district the Piiholo and Olinda Roads I don't know when they're going to
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be starting, but we've had meetings before in the community, and we've been told, okay,
it's going to be, this is the target date, but it keeps getting pushed back for whatever
reasons. So those are some challenges I know we have to deal with.
Let me ask you something a little bit more difficult as it relates to the proposed study
from Mr. Mateo. In your opinion, do we need to slow down development so our road
infrastructure can get caught up, and do you agree with the need for this study?
MR. ARAKAWA: I, I think as far as a new study, well, and I'm just speaking for myself, I, I
believe the Planning Department has already taken the step to, to do the CIP
Implementation Plan, and once, I mean that, that CIP Implementation Plan is one
component of the entire General Plan Update. Now the General Plan Update will take in,
take a look at population projections, where they should be allocated, what's the rate of
growth that we should be looking at. So, I, I think it's part of the total picture that the
Planning Department has already embarked upon through the GP AC. And I think that,
that process has already started, and it's, it's well on its way. I know it hasn't reached the
Council yet, but once it goes through all of the, the analyses and the hearings, and after
that's all done, you know, it, it will come here.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Earlier Chairman Hokama mentioned the STIP with
the State DOT, and you know, not to be critical of the State, but you know, things have
been pushed back on a lot of their major road projects, and the County or, and the
Council, you know, working in partnership with your Department we've had to be
creative, and one area of creativity, ifI will, is the Paia mini bypass. And, yes, there were
some naysayers that said, no, we should wait for the permanent bypass, but if we waited
we would have been getting thousands of calls, and literally I mean hundreds maybe
thousands of calls, because of the backup Paia experienced, you know, recently prior to
the implementation of the bypass. And the bypass, you know, it's helped make things
better.
the
took
to support

a
MR. ARAKAWA: There, there are many needs. I
I, I mentioned several of them, and the
State actually is
the process of doing their Maui Long-Range Transportation Plan
Update, and they'll address that very question and prioritize the types of projects that will
be needed, and I, and I already named several. Of course, the Lahaina bypass, it's going
to be done in several phases. You know, that's a critical need for the west side.
Realignment of Honoapiilani Highway they're starting the EIS process on that. Airport
access road, we've been talking about that and the congestion on Dairy Road for how
many years now, and that's, that's sorely needed as well. But we're also thankful that,
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you know, Mokulele Highway is almost done, four-laning [sic] of Haleakala Highway is
under construction, and of course Paia bypass they just started, they're starting on the
planning portions of that, so there's still a lot of work to be done, but you know, there,
there have been efforts by the DOT to spend a lot of money here on Maui and Mokulele
is, you know, a real good example, and of course Haleakala Highway is, you know,
there's visible evidence of projects that are under way.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, you sidestepped my question a little bit, but
that's okay I won't pressure you anymore on that. You know, there was talk years ago,
as it relates to the west side, about a possible, dare I say the word, ferry system of taking,
you know, if, if there's a big backup on Honoapiilani Highway or an accident on the pali
which holds up traffic, there was talk of some type of maybe private ferry system that
could take folks over in an emergency from Lahaina to Central Maui, especially tourists
who need to catch their planes and so forth. Has that discussion ever resurfaced amongst
some of the State folks you work with or even something that's within the County's
Department?
MR. ARAKAWA: I, I haven't heard anything lately about it. I know there were some
discussions about it some years past, but not anything lately. I know the City has
embarked on that, that commuter ferry -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Exactly.
MR. ARAKAWA: --from the Ewa area to Downtown Honolulu, but I understand one of the
issues that they've run across is not so much the use of the ferry, but actually parking
spaces for the commuters. So, but anyway as far as Maui's concerned I, I haven't heard
anything lately about the ferry system being implemented.

Okay.
MR. ARAKAWA: But I'd prefer probably to get back in writing to you on, on that -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. ARAKAWA: --if, if you want a response from ...
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I, I definitely would, because now with the City and
County implementing that I think it's something maybe we should at least open up the
discussion again as it relates to the west side. So that's just my opinion, and maybe I had
too much caffeine this morning, I'm peppering you with quite a few things. So, anyway,
basically, you know, lay off for the time being, but one more thing on County and private
partnerships as it relates to funding for our road projects, is that something that you
support or would you prefer we sort of take a hands off approach on getting involved
with private entities for funding our, our road projects? I mean, you know, I think the
public needs to understand if we don't get our funding from elsewhere the only other way
is the possibility is raising taxes which is something that, you know, most elected
officials don't really look forward to doing. Give us your take on that.
MR. ARAKAWA: We're trying to forge public private partnerships whenever we can because
like you said it does provide us the opportunity to leverage our, our County funding.
However, as, as you know when we enter into such partnerships it's usually in
conjunction with some sort of development, and there are other issues that are also
involved as to whether we really want the development there or what shape it, it should
take and, and so on. But, you know, from the infrastructure standpoint it's certainly
doable. I mean if, you know, when, whenever we can we'd, we'd like to get involved
with something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And I, and I ask that question in relation to the
response you gave on the bleak outlook the State gave you with regards to Federal
funding. So I think again we have to come up with some creative alternative means to
get the funding needed to address some of our major road projects other than having to
consider raising taxes which is something that, you know, I don't like doing.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Well, if, if I can raise one other issue and this primarily relates to the
approach on
Plan Update, they've tried to ,nn·,Vll

a
o~
O~
feet, you know, we have to provide the roads, the maintenance for all of that long stretch,
in addition to the roads from, you know, the rural area to the urban area. So s, you
know, a lot more expensive than say if you had, you know, ten families living along that
500 foot stretch, then, you know, we can, you know, minimize the amount of new roads
that we can build. So I, I support that, that concept of urban growth boundaries, and I
think with that sort of approach we can hopefully minimize the amount of new
infrastructure monies that would be needed and hopefully concentrate just on
maintenance issues.
- 44-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 16,2007

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and thank you, Mr. Director. And, you know, I think
you bring up some good points as, as it relates to just growth in itself. And the media
tends to give a lot of attention to the big mega size proposal for projects, but people
forget the cumulative impacts of the smaller projects. I think Member, Chairman
Hokama has alluded to that before, and it happens in my district. One of the major
reasons for the Paia traffic was because you have all of these small projects that don't
come before the Council that's springing up in Haiku, you know, Haiku area, North
Shore area. We're not growing cattle anymore it seems like or agriculture. All these
small little subdivisions it adds up to one big impact. So it's not only just the big projects
that could cause potential backup in terms of traffic, it's the smaller projects when you
add up the cumulative impact. And not only in the north shore, but also South Maui,
West Maui, et cetera. So anyway, Madam Chair, I'll, I'll lay off for now and thank you
for being patient, and thank you, Mr. Director.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Molina, and that's a perfect segue into our next
department person that would be presenting. We have the Deputy Director of
Transportation. And, Mr. Arakawa, thank you very much. If you could hang, we'll see
how we can use our next 15 minutes. You know, the Chair is a stickler for time. I was
raised by a mother who said keep an eye on the clock, and I know that today is a very
special day for many people. I'd like to offer my personal congratulations and best
wishes to all the bosses today. Today is Boss's day, and some of us have been very
fortunate, and are being honored by our staff. And so I know everybody's looking
forward to a celebratory lunch. So we'd like to use the rest of our time very wisely. So,
Deputy Director, Mr. Boteilho, if you would please give us your comments on this issue.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay. Thank you, Madam-waiting.

go right
Department regarding
item before you Maui Island Infrastructure studies.
into some milestones that we've been working with the Planning Department to put the
update of the General Plan, and give you a short status of each one.
CHAIR BAlSA: Great.
MR. BOTEILHO: When I, when I start it, it'll be the more current efforts and as we go on it, it
will be the, the more long-term.
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Number one, increase the frequency of service for current routes to 30 minute headways.
We've done a lot of that. Wailuku and Kahului routes are already 30 minutes.
Upcountry we have, it used to be three hours; we've cut it in half to an hour and a half.
We've added four more commuter routes. So, so we've made progress on that. Increase
MDOT staff. We have made progress on that. We had a public transit specialist that
started earlier this year and a civil engineer that started in August. Increase marketing of
current bus services. We are just completing this marketing campaign in which we made
an economic appeal to the, to the people. Basically, you can save money by utilizing the
Maui Bus. Next year, at the Mayor's direction, we shall be concentrating on the youth.
We'd like them to be Maui Bus ambassadors and not only for now, but when they, when
they grow up, they will utilize the bus.
Enhance bus stops with improved signs and passenger waiting benches and shelters.
Signs are, are already under way. We have, regarding benches and shelters, we have our
bus stop planning and design study which is, our consultant will be here next Monday.
This will be a fact-finding trip. Later on in late January or early February then the
consultant will be coming back. We'll be meeting with the public, public hearings
basically on, in each community plan district on Maui. Also, we'll be working with you,
Madam Chair, to have a presentation to the County Council.
CHAIR BAlSA: Very good.
MR. BOTEILHO: Acquire larger capacity vehicles. Just this year we acquired seven of, of 41
passenger buses. Prior to that it was, our capacity was, like, 25 seats. We also between
now and next summer will be acquiring seven more buses. These are not the large ones,
but basically again the mid-range 25 seats.
We're, we're working on that, but that's

like to spend a
moment on
transit corridors.
year I went up to
California to meet with the BART people and the San Jose Valley Transit Authority. We
discussed rail transit corridors. And basically they said, you know, there's going, Maui
does not need rail right now. What, there's so much mitigation, there's so much other
things that you can do that you should do that first. That is fairly standard in the
transportation industry. However, I will say this though, that rail corridors would be
excellent for use for bus rapid transit corridors. So we'll be looking at corridors, like I
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say, in about three, four years we'll be ready, but I can, I can foresee these corridors
being used for bus rapid transit. And with that, Madam Chair, I am, I am through.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much for a very good report.
Mr. Boteilho?

Members, questions of

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR BAlSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Quickly, just two questions -CHAIR BAlSA: Yes, Chair Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and then I'm happy to have the other Members. One, while
you gave us some very good ideas of projects within your Department, are you prepared
to give us the financial impacts and requirements for those projects?
MR. BOTEILHO: Not at this time, Mr. Hokama. Our bus system and in its present form just
started in July 1st of 2006. The projected ride, so what I'm saying is that we have been
really focusing our efforts on increasing the, the current bus system. Planning efforts,
including financial planning, we are starting now, and as an example our bus stop
planning and design. Our bus system was projected this year to have only 300,000 riders.
We have about 110 a month now. At that rate we'll be about 1.3 million. So to answer
your question, no, I'm not ready with financial answers. However, we've been
scrambling to keep up with our ridership.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, you're well aware that people like me go down
to the dollars
good ideas need to be
financial means of our

was us, I

I will
omm11ttee know.

You know, to be
let
Planning,

my

if it

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If not, then you should terminate that consultant. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, and I think, because I asked that privately of Mr. Kaku, that
question that was just asked, and I believe they were taking it off of the Maui LongRange Transportation Plan that said that what we would desire is level of transportation
or a level of service C, but that, you know, D was still acceptable, and I said, well, yeah,
but that's not what the Maui Long-Range Transportation Plan says. We want to strive
for, in all cases, level of service C which is a better level of service. So I think that's
where he was getting it from, and I agree with Chair Hokama. To me it's not acceptable,
and I think that we need to just raise the bar a bit. And I'm anxious to see what the Maui
Long-Range Transportation Plan Update actually says.
And, and with regard to that, Mr. Boteilho, are you giving input on the update of the
Long-Range Transportation Plan because I know as part of our infrastructure, even our
documentation that we're looking at is really important in order for us to make proper
decisions.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Boteilho.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah. Yes, we are giving input into the General Plan Update. The Planning
Department has had a series of meetings with the, with the departments. We have, we
have gone to everyone. They're also going to be scheduling individual meetings with
different departments, and so we're, we're on that schedule. Just a fast comment if I may
about the ...
CHAIR BAlSA: Please go right ahead.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah, I think, I think I understand the question better about the level of
service for the roads. I want to make the point that the Department of Transportation is
not in charge of highways, and the, the Public Works Director knew I was going to say
So this is not a, not a brand new policy.
charge of

a water
is
when I lived the U.S. Virgin Islands we called it the Bomba Charger, and it would just
go from different points, pick up workers that would, you know, go from St. John to St.
Thomas, then it would go from east end St. Thomas to downtown Charlotte Amalie. And
it was sort of, we just called it a water taxi, and yes, the taxi drivers did oppose it, but it
really functioned very well and particularly during periods where there was roadway
construction. So do you kind of, you know, think that that's something that we should
also look at if we move forward with an infrastructure study as to other options that might
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actually reduce the cost for putting down pavement, and especially, you know, in West
Maui?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes, we, we would be in support of virtually any policy or means that would
reduce cars on the road. In a practical sense, however, I cannot foresee that happening
within the next five years. The reason for that is although we are an agency that, well,
because we are an agency that deals with multi-departments, harbors and such, that's not
under our total, total authority. So it's more of a working thing. And also, again, you
know, we're, we're, we're focusing on our bus system right, right now.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah, and I thank you for the West Maui routes, because it really
has dramatically reduced congestion, even during what I call high season it's really made
a difference because you don't see as many backups along Honoapiilani Highway. I
don't know what was happening before, but whatever it is, at, at least it's much better
than it was before. So I attribute that to your, you know, expansion of the routes, and I
want to thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Well, I certainly can agree with you because I don't seem to sit in traffic going
out there as long, as much as I did in, in months past. And, Mr. Boteilho, I'm very
interested in those figures. Would you repeat them again about your ridership? They're
.
.
very ImpressIve.
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes, a Short-Range Transit Plan was done in 2005, and it was a five-year
plan. I would say that that plan is obsolete already, because in year two ... we're already
in year five. The Short, Short-Range Transit Plan basically predicted that in year two we
would have approximately 300,000 riders. Right now we're averaging, no, we, we, yeah,
we are averaging about 110,000 riders a month. At that rate and with our rate of growth
we expect to have 1.3 million riders by the end of this fiscal year.

we
two
to get
as to
ideas about whether or not we need a Maui Island Infrastructure Study, and s very
time that it needs. So, Mr. Medeiros?
important. So I want to give it
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. In the interest of time and to follow
your protocol for meetings I just have one question, and, and the question relates to how
can we less, lessen the impact on our taxpayers when we have to fund new structures. So
my question is does the Department of Transportation have a working relationship in
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partnering with groups such as the Rotary and Lion's Club in helping produce bus stop
shelters?
MR. BOTEILHO: Not in any formal sense at, at this point. They have helped in the past, but I
guess to share a little bit, you know, when I came into transportation, you know, I have a
planning background, but not a, not a transportation background, and I thought what's so
hard you just put, put bench on the ground, you know. And then I found out it's not that
easy. There's ADA requirements, you can't just put it on the ground, you have, because
when rain have mud, you cannot access, there's lighting needs, trash, all that sort of
thing. So I, I guess the kick-off to this effort was to do the bus stop planning and design
study. We want to be a little more academic even if it's a little slower in putting our bus
stops out. Once we have the plan, then we can work with the community.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I, I would encourage your Department to search out
the partnerships available, because I think the Lion's Club does do shelters for school bus
stops, and maybe they're willing to also share in providing bus stops for the riders.
Thank you, Mr. Boteilho.
MR. BOTEILHO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much that was a very good question. You know, I have a little
bit of a transportation background, and Director Medeiros and I for many years looked at
this issue of building bus stops for the MEO buses, and it is a very complicated issue as
to where they can be located, ownership, easements, you know, so many things, and then,
of course, maintenance is also another big issue. So people say, well, let's just build a
stop, but it's not that simple, and I too am very into community partnerships, and I think
anywhere where we can partner with our non-profits or
community we should try to

use

bus, okay.

MR. BOTEILHO: Yes, because my, my, car repair shop is on Lower Main. I drop my car off,
and then I walk to Sack-n-Save, and I catch the bus, and it takes me up to the State
Building so I can come to work.
CHAIR BAlSA: Very good. You know what they say, walk the talk.
intended. Member Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Madam Chair.
One quick question for
Mr. Boteilho. Any, any demand for airport bus transportation, public bus transportation
to and from the airport to wherever? Has there been a demand expressed to the
Department?
MR. BOTEILHO: Yes, I would, I would say at this point we're looking at that, but we don't
have any finite plans. It's more of which buses go to the airport more often. You know,
in the, in the, in the bus business time is very critical. You got to be on time. So we're,
we're looking at our headways on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you for that question I get it all the time, too. Members, and presenters,
and StaffI'd like to thank everybody for an excellent meeting today. I think we learned a
lot including our GIS presentation which was excellent, and we will without objections
defer this matter to our next meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

ACTION:

CHAIR BAlSA: I'd like to thank you, and are there any announcements from the Members?
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: One quick one. I want to thank my executive assistant
Yvonne Ching and her mom for this very beautiful lei for Boss's Day. Mahalo.
I thought it was Boss's Week, Madam

2
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